A. IDENTITY OF PETITIONER 

Vladik Bykov, the appellant below, asks this Court to accept 

review of the Court of Appeals decision designated in Part B of this 

petition. 

B. COURT OF APPEALS DECISION 

Bykov requests review of the decision m Vladik Bykov v. 

Honorable Steven Rosen and City of Seattle, Court of Appeals No. 68321-

7-I (slip op. filed August, 12, 2013), attached as Appendix A. The Court 

of Appeals denied Bykov's motion to reconsider on September 6, 2013. 

See Appendix B. 

C. ISSUES PRESENTED FOR REVIEW 

1. Whether the sentencing condition that completely prohibits 

Bykov from accessing the Internet violates his fundamental constitutional 

right to free speech? 

2. Whether facts relied on to justify a sentence must be proved 

by a preponderance of the evidence to comport with due process? 

D. STATEMENT OF THE CASE 

Bykov was charged with 13 counts of cyberstalking and 5 counts 

of harassment in Seattle Municipal Court. Slip op. at 2. At trial on half

time defense motions, the court dismissed with prejudice 16 of 18 charges 

based on "problems ofproof." Slip op. at 3. The jury acquitted Bykov on 
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one of the remaining counts of harassment, leaving him guilty of only one 

count of harassment based on an email sent to Brian Fresonke. Slip op. at 

3; CP 28, 59, 149, 172-75. As part of Bykov's suspended sentence, the 

court ordered Bykov to "not use any device connected to the internet." CP 

60. 

Bykov filed a pro se application for writ of habeas corpus pursuant to 

chapter 7.36 RCW. CP 1-7. Bykov argued the sentencing condition 

prohibiting Internet access was an unconstitutional restriction on his right to 

free speech. CP 4-5, 13-14. The superior court denied the writ, concluding, 

"Inasmuch as the basis for petitioner's conviction was an email he sent to the 

victim, prohibiting petitioner from further use of the instrumentality of his 

crime is neither unreasonable nor unconstitutional. The constitutional rights 

of a convicted defendant are subject to reasonable restrictions to protect the 

public. Petitioner's ability to use a telephone or mail to contact his lawyer 

and to use a law library for legal research is not impaired. Petitioner has 

ample and adequate substitutes for use of the internet." CP 155-56. 

On appeal, Bykov continued to argue the Internet ban violated his 

right to free speech. See Amended Brief of Appellant; Reply Brief; 

Motion to Reconsider. The Court of Appeals affirmed, claiming a total 

ban on Internet access is appropriate when the Internet is used as an 

instrument of a crime. Slip op. at 1, 9; App. B. 
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E. ARGUMENT WHY REVIEW SHOULD BE ACCEPTED 

1. REVIEW IS WARRANTED BECAUSE THE 
PROPRIETY OF A CATEGORICAL BAN ON 
INTERNET ACCESS AS A SENTENCING CONDITION 
PRESENTS A SIGNIFICANT QUESTION OF 
CONSTITUTIONAL LAW AND IS OF SUBSTANTIAL 
PUBLIC IMPORTANCE. 

The Internet is a ubiquitous presence in 21st century life. Devices 

connected to the Internet, including phones, are legion. The Internet is 

now a primary means of expressing and receiving protected speech. The 

court order prohibiting Bykov from accessing any device connected to the 

Internet strikes at the heart of his right to freedom of speech, freedom of 

association, and freedom to receive information under the First 

Amendment ofthe United States Constitution and article I, section 5 of the 

Washington Constitution. The sentencing condition is unconstitutional 

because it is neither reasonably necessary nor narrowly drawn to protect a 

compelling state interest. 

Bykov challenged the sentencing condition by writ of habeas 

corpus under chapter 7.36 RCW. CP 1-7. "Under RCW 7.36.140 this 

court is required to determine whether or not the petitioner has been 

denied a right guaranteed by the federal constitution." Smith v. Whatcom 

County Dist. Court, 147 Wn.2d 98, 113, 52 P.3d 485 (2002). Whether the 

fundamental right to free speech exercised over the Internet is sacrificed 
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whenever a person uses the Internet to commit a crime is a significant 

question of constitutional law calling for review under RAP 13.4(b)(3). 

Further, the issue is bound to recur with increasing frequency because the 

Internet is now such a pervasive means to communicate with others and its 

use continues to increase. Bykov's case therefore presents an issue of 

substantial public interest warranting review under RAP 13.4(b)(4). 

a. The Internet Ban Does Not Survive Strict Scrutiny. 

A convicted defendant's constitutional rights are subject to 

infringement. State v. Ross, 129 Wn.2d 279, 287, 916 P.2d 405 (1996). 

But the infringements themselves must be constitutional. "The extent to 

which a sentencing condition affects a constitutional right is a legal 

question subject to strict scrutiny." In re Pers. Restraint of Rainey, 168 

Wn.2d 367, 374, 229 P.3d 686 (2010). Conditions that interfere with 

fundamental rights "must be 'sensitively imposed' so that they are 

'reasonably necessary to accomplish the essential needs of the State and 

public order."' Rainey, 168 Wn.2d at 374 (quoting State v. Warren, 165 

Wn.2d 17, 32, 195 P.3d 940 (2008)). Crime-related prohibitions affecting 

fundamental rights must therefore be narrowly drawn. Warren, 165 

Wn.2d at 34. "There must be no reasonable alternative way to achieve the 

State's interest." Id. at 34-35. 
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The Internet is "the most participatory form of mass speech yet 

developed." Reno v. American Civil Liberties Union, 521 U.S. 844, 863, 

117 S. Ct. 2329, 138 L. Ed. 2d. 874 (1997) (quoting American Civil 

Liberties Union v. Reno, 929 F. Supp. 824, 883 (E.D. Pa. 1996)). It 

provides relatively unlimited capacity for communication of all kinds. 

Reno, 521 U.S. at 870. '"Computers and Internet access have become 

virtually indispensable in the modem world' and their permeation of all 

aspects of our lives is increasing exponentially." United States v. Voelker, 

489 F.3d 139, 148 n.8 (3d Cir. 2007) (quoting United States v. Peterson, 

248 F.3d 79, 83 (2d Cir. 2001)). 

It has been 20 years since this Court addressed a computer 

prohibition as part of a sentence. State v. Riley, 121 Wn.2d 22, 36-38; 846 

P.2d 1365 (1993). At that time, the Internet was in its infancy. The Court 

upheld a sentencing prohibition on computer possession and bulletin board 

access against a self-proclaimed hacker whose use of the computer was an 

intrinsic, indispensable part of computer trespass crimes. Riley, 121 

Wn.2d at 37-38. The Court in Riley did not even recognize the existence 

of the Internet. 

It is time for this Court to address whether a categorical ban on 

Internet access is constitutionally justified based on the mere fact that the 

Internet was an incidental instrument of the crime perpetrated. Sensitive 
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imposition of a condition affecting the ability to exercise the fundamental 

right to free speech through the Internet requires recognition of the sheer 

breadth of speech activity that a complete ban on Internet access entails in 

the 21st century. 

The Internet ban in Bykov's case is unconstitutional because it is 

not narrowly tailored to protect the victim from further harassment. 

Protecting victims of crime from future harm is a compelling state interest. 

Rainey, 168 Wn.2d at 377. Courts routinely and appropriately impose no

contact orders as part of a sentence to achieve that interest. See, ~' id. at 

377-80; Warren, 165 Wn.2d at 31-32; State v. Noah, 103 Wn. App. 29, 41, 

9 P.3d 858 (2000), review denied, 143 Wn.2d 1014, 22 P.3d 802 (2001); 

State v. Armendariz, 160 Wn.2d 106, 120, 156 P.3d 201 (2007) (trial 

courts may impose crime-related prohibitions, including no-contact orders, 

for a term of the maximum sentence to a crime). 

The municipal court in Bykov's case imposed a no contact 

condition that prohibited Bykov from contacting Fresonke. CP 60. The 

no contact provision of the sentence is narrowly drawn. Its existence 

shows there are reasonable alternative ways to achieve the state's interest 

short of a complete ban on Internet use. The Internet ban is overkill. 

Bykov's sentence already contains an order that effectively covers what 

the Internet ban seeks to accomplish. See United States v. Riley, 576 F.3d 
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1046, 1049-50 (9th Cir. 2009) (striking down Internet restriction where 

other sentencing conditions validly prohibited same kind of criminal 

conduct the Internet ban was meant to achieve). 

Unlike the inveterate computer hacker in Riley, 121 Wn.2d 22 

supra, Bykov did not commit a crime that intrinsically relied on the 

medium itself for its accomplishment. The commission of harassment via 

email was incidental to the crime. Harassment may be committed through 

many means. Sending an email is one means. Uttering a threat in person, 

over the telephone, or in a letter are others. There is nothing special about 

the crime of harassment that links it to Internet use. Furthermore, there is 

no basis in this case to conclude that an Internet ban was necessary to 

discourage communication with others who would support and encourage 

Bykov to commit a new crime of harassment. This is another factor that 

separates Bykov's case from this Court's decision in Riley. 

The Court of Appeals believes a total ban on Internet access is 

appropriate when the Internet is used an instrument of a crime. Slip op. at 

9. That approach is too blunt and does disservice to the importance of the 

fundamental right at stake. This Court has cautioned sentencing 

conditions affecting fundamental rights must be "sensitively" imposed. 

Rainey, 168 Wn.2d at 374. Merely focusing on whether the Internet is an 

instrument used to commit a crime is far too simplistic in deciding 
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whether an Internet restriction is permissible. United States v. Sofsky, 287 

F.3d 122, 126 (2d Cir. 2002). 

Suppose Bykov harassed Fresonke by means of a written letter sent 

through the United States Postal Service. Would the sentencing court 

have been justified in prohibiting Bykov from using the mails? Suppose 

Bykov uttered a true threat over the telephone instead of making one in an 

email. Could the sentencing court constitutionally prohibit Bykov from 

talking on the telephone? Suppose Bykov had walked up to someone and 

uttered a true threat in person. Could the sentencing court constitutionally 

prohibit Bykov from personally speaking to anyone as a means to prevent 

further harassment? 

The answer is no. See Peterson, 248 F.3d at 83 (in striking down 

Internet ban, reasoning "[a]lthough a defendant might use the telephone to 

commit fraud, this would not justify a condition of probation that includes 

an absolute bar on the use of telephones. Nor would defendant's proclivity 

toward pornography justify a ban on all books, magazines, and 

newspapers."); Sofsky, 287 F.3d at 126 (in striking down Internet ban, 

reasoning a prohibition on the use of the mails imposed on a defendant 

convicted of mail fraud would not pass muster); Voelker, 489 F.3d at 145 

(Internet ban was the functional equivalent of prohibiting a defendant who 

pleads guilty to possession of magazines containing child pornography 
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from possessing any books or magazines of any type); United States v. 

White, 244 F.3d 1199, 1207 (lOth Cir. 2001) ("Given the openness of 

cyberspace, if the court instead chooses to prohibit Mr. White's using any 

computer, we must caution against this broad sweep under the facts and 

circumstances here. The communication facilitated by this technology 

may be likened to that of the telephone. Its instant link to information is 

akin to opening a book."); United States v. Holm, 326 F.3d 872, 879 (7th 

Cir. 2003) (while parolees typically have fewer constitutional rights than 

ordinary persons, a strict Internet ban was "the early 21st century 

equivalent of forbidding all telephone calls, or all newspapers."). 

Why should use of the Internet be treated any differently? Internet 

access is worthy of more protection, not less, because it has become a vast 

repository of free speech in the 21st century, as well as a ubiquitous means 

of engaging in speech and receiving information. The Internet prohibition 

prevents Bykov from accessing or engaging in a whole range of 

constitutionally protected speech that has nothing at all to do with the 

crime for which he was convicted. 

"[I]n a time where the daily necessities of life and work demand 

not only internet access but internet fluency, sentencing courts need to 

select the least restrictive alternative for achieving their sentencing 

purposes." United States v. Albertson, 645 F.3d 191, 200 (3d Cir. 2011). 
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Astonishingly, the Court of Appeals relies on the importance of the 

Internet as an everyday means to express and receive free speech as a 

reason to ban it. Slip op. at 9-10. 

The complete ban on Internet use is the antithesis of a narrowly 

tailored infringement on the fundamental free speech right. In addition to 

imposing a no contact order, there are other ways short of an absolute ban 

on Internet access to achieve the state's interest in preventing further 

victimization. Reasonable alternatives short of a complete Internet ban 

exist. Such alternatives include (1) conditioning Internet access on a 

supervisiOn officer's permissiOn; (2) allowing Internet usage but 

prohibiting e-mail usage. The Court of Appeals ignored these alternative 

ways of achieving the state's interest. 

b. A Sentencing Court Cannot Rely On Alleged Facts 
Attached To Charges For Which There Is No 
Conviction And Which Have Not Otherwise Been 
Proven By A Preponderance Of The Evidence. 

In holding the Internet ban is constitutional, the Court of Appeals 

relied on facts attached to the many charges for which Bykov was not 

convicted and which were not found to be proven by a preponderance of 

the evidence. Slip op. at 1-2, 10. The Court of Appeals decision conflicts 

with the requirements of due process and United States Supreme Court 

precedent. U.S. Const. Amend XIV; United States v. Watts, 519 U.S. 148, 
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156, 117 S. Ct. 633, 136 L. Ed. 2d 554 (1997). Review is warranted under 

RAP 13.4(b)(l) and (b)(3). 

"Although facts at sentencing need not be proved beyond a 

reasonable doubt, fundamental principles of due process prohibit a 

criminal defendant from being sentenced on the basis of information 

which is false, lacks a minimum indicia of reliability, or is unsupported in 

the record." State v. Ford, 137 Wn.2d 472, 481, 973 P.2d 452 (1999). 

"Information relied upon at sentencing 'is false or unreliable' if it lacks 

'some minimal indicium of reliability beyond mere allegation."' Ford, 

137 Wn.2d at 481 (quoting United States v. Ibarra, 737 F.2d 825, 827 (9th 

Cir.1984)) (internal quotation marks omitted). 

The facts alleged in the certificate of probable cause, Fresonke's 

pre-trial interview and the police report do not rise above mere allegation 

because Bykov was not convicted of any of the charges to which those 

factual allegations attached. Bykov was not convicted of these additional 

charges because the City was unable to prove the alleged offenses 

happened: Bykov was acquitted of one offense by the jury and the other 

additional charges were dismissed on half-time motion due to "proof 

problems," i.e., insufficient evidence to take the matter to the jury. Slip op. 

at 3; CP 28, 59, 172-75. It is a perversion of due process to allow a 
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sentencing condition that restricts a fundamental constitutional right to be 

based on facts connected to other charges that could not be proven. 

It is true that "a jury's verdict of acquittal does not prevent the 

sentencing court from considering conduct underlying the acquitted charge, 

so long as that conduct has been proved by a preponderance of the 

evidence." Watts, 519 U.S. at 156. In Bykov's case, the conduct for 

which he was acquitted or for which the charges were dismissed based on 

insufficient evidence were not found proven by a preponderance of 

evidence or any other standard. See People v. Black, 33 A.D.3d 338, 343, 

821 N.Y.S.2d 593 (N.Y.A.D. 2006) ("Critically, no finding has been made 

by a preponderance of the evidence that defendant committed two 

unjustified shootings. Accordingly, because the conduct of which 

defendant was acquitted was improperly considered by the sentencing 

court, a remand for resentencing is required."). There is therefore no basis 

for any court to rely on those alleged facts to justify the challenged 

sentencing condition here. 

The determination of probable cause at the probable cause hearing 

does not amount to a preponderance of the evidence finding on any 

conduct for which Bykov was not convicted. CP 23. Trial standards of 

proof such as preponderance of the evidence do not apply to probable 

cause determinations because courts do not weigh evidence to determine 
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probable cause. In re Detention of Petersen, 145 Wn.2d 789, 797-98, 42 

P.3d 952 (2002). Trial standards of proof only apply to "determinations 

on the merits after a full presentation of all the evidence where that 

evidence can be weighed and disputes can be resolved by the fact finder." 

Petersen, 145 Wn.2d at 797-98. 

Bykov, meanwhile, did not acknowledge the truth of any 

additional factual allegations by attaching the probable cause hearing and 

pre-trial interview transcripts, or a police report, to his petition for writ of 

habeas corpus. CP 18-23, 43-54, 56-57. Bykov, acting prose at the time, 

attached those things to his petition as a basis to argue the trial court erred 

or defense counsel was ineffective in failing to admit these items into 

evidence. CP 2-4. According to Bykov, those sources showed Fresonke 

was not telling the truth based on inconsistent statements or conduct, and 

the failure to admit those inconsistencies into evidence prevented Bykov 

from creating a reasonable doubt on the single conviction for which he 

was convicted. ld. 

The attorney representing Bykov at argument before the superior 

court on the petition, and the City attorney himself, addressed the 

significance of those extra-evidentiary sources exclusively in that context. 

RP 7-8, 15-16. The City argued the sentencing condition was proper 

based on the email sent by Bykov that formed the basis for his conviction. 
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RP 19. The City did not argue the additional factual allegations contained 

in the probable cause transcript, pre-trial interview transcript, or police 

report should be taken into account in determining the constitutionality of 

the sentencing condition. RP 19; CP 170. 

The superior court's findings of fact and conclusions of law on the 

habeas petition track the limited purpose for which those items were 

introduced. CP 150-54. The superior court based its decision on the 

single email that formed the basis for Bykov's sole conviction: "Inasmuch 

as the basis for petitioner's conviction was an email he sent to the victim, 

prohibiting petitioner from further use of the instrumentality of his crime 

is neither unreasonable nor unconstitutional." CP 15 5. The superior court 

did not rely on additional factual allegations that were never proven to 

deny Bykov's challenge to the sentencing condition, nor could it have 

done so consistent with due process. CP 155-56. The Court of Appeals 

did rely on additional factual allegations that were never proven to justify 

the Internet ban. That is a violation of due process. 
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F. CONCLUSION 

For the reasons stated above, Bykov respectfully requests that this 

Court grant review.