19522-X

Court of Appeals No. 68321-7-I

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF WASHINGTON

VLADIK BYKOV, Petitioner,

C. ISSUE PRESENTED FOR REVIEW

Does the Court of Appeals' unpublished decision upholding the trial court's now-expired probation condition involve a significant question of constitutional law or involve a substantial issue of public interest justifying review under RAP 13.4(b)(3) or (4)?

D. STATEMENT OF THE CASE

Petitioner was convicted of Harassment in Seattle Municipal Court based on sending an email to the victim. CP at 149. This email was sent by a computer. RP at 11. As the victim stated, "In that email, Mr. Bykov made an express threat that I am going to end

1

up like Rasputin. And he specifically mentioned a dagger." CP at 20. Petitioner also wrote "Mr. Fresonke, I am writing to you this email to warn you of the future. If something bad happens to you, always remember that you are responsible for it." CP at 47. Petitioner also sent to the victim an email with a photograph of his father and inquired how to get in contact with him. CP at 20. According to the victim, petitioner also has used the victim's name to open fraudulent email accounts. CP at 20.

One condition of petitioner's two-year suspended sentence, entered on November 3, 2011, was that he not use any device connected to the Internet. CP at 150. He sought a writ of habeas corpus, alleging a variety of claims, including that this Internet restriction was unconstitutional in that it hindered his ability to communicate with his counsel and conduct legal research. CP at 4-5, 13-14, 76 & 86-87; RP at 10-12. The superior court denied petitioner's request for relief, in pertinent part, as follows:

5. Inasmuch as the basis for petitioner's conviction was an email he sent to the victim, prohibiting petitioner from further use of the instrumentality of his crime is neither unreasonable nor unconstitutional. *See State v. Riley*, 121 Wn.2d 22, 36-

38, 846 P.2d 1365 (1993) (sentence condition imposed on defendant convicted of Computer Trespass prohibiting owning a computer or communicating with computer bulletin boards not unreasonable or unconstitutional). The constitutional rights of a convicted defendant are subject to reasonable restrictions to protect the public. *State v. Combs*, 102 Wn. App. 949, 953, 10 P.3d 1101 (2000) (prohibition on using computer not unconstitutional). Petitioner's ability to use a telephone or mail to contact his lawyer and to use a law library for legal research is not impaired. Petitioner has ample and adequate substitutes for use of the internet.

CP at 155-56.

Petitioner appealed the denial of his request for relief,

challenging only this Internet restriction. The Court of Appeals rejected petitioner's arguments that this internet prohibition was a prior restraint and that it was unconstitutional because it was not the least restrictive means of accomplishing the government's legitimate interest. Slip opinion, at 6-10. The court later denied petitioner's Motion for Reconsideration.

E. <u>ARGUMENT</u>

Petitioner has not established that this case involves a significant question of constitutional law or an issue of substantial public interest justifying review under RAP 13.4(b)(3) or (4).

Petitioner contends that review of the Court of Appeals decision is warranted under RAP 13.4(b)(3) and $(4)^1$ because use of the internet is ubiquitous in 21st century life as a means of expressing and receiving constitutionally protected speech. While petitioner may well have presented a constitutional issue and an issue of public interest, he has not shown that it is a *significant* constitutional issue or an issue of *substantial* public interest. The Court of Appeals' decision was an unpublished opinion so has no effect on anyone other than petitioner. Petitioner's two-year suspended sentence was imposed on November 3, 2011. His many motions to stay the sentence were denied by the trial court, the superior court and the

4

¹ RAP 13.4(b) provides, in pertinent part:

Considerations Governing Acceptance of Review. A petition for review will be accepted by the Supreme Court only:

⁽³⁾ If a significant question of law under the Constitution of the State of Washington or of the United States is involved; or

⁽⁴⁾ If the petition involves an issue of substantial public interest that should be determined by the Supreme Court.

Court of Appeals.² Petitioner did fail to appear for a hearing on May 8, 2012, but he was arrested on the bench warrant the same day so the probationary period was not tolled.³ Petitioner's suspended sentence thus expired yesterday. Petitioner is no longer subject to this probation condition. The City has never alleged that he has violated this internet prohibition.

Petitioner does not contend that an internet prohibition is

never permissible, only that it was improper based on the unique

facts in this case. Whether such a restriction is improper in another

² The superior court did at one point, however, stay the probation condition of obtaining a mental health evaluation. That stay was later lifted.

³ See RCW 35.20.255(1) provides, in pertinent part:

Judges of the municipal court, in their discretion, shall have the power in all criminal proceedings within their jurisdiction including violations of city ordinances, to defer imposition of any sentence, suspend all or part of any sentence including installment payment of fines, fix the terms of any such deferral or suspension, and provide for such probation as in their opinion is reasonable and necessary under the circumstances of the case, but in no case shall it extend for more than five years from the date of conviction for a defendant to be sentenced for a domestic violence offense or under RCW 46.61.5055 and two years from the date of conviction for all other offenses. A defendant who has been sentenced, or whose sentence has been deferred, and who then fails to appear for any hearing to address the defendant's compliance with the terms of probation when ordered to do so by the court, shall have the term of probation tolled until such time as the defendant makes his or her presence known to the court on the record. case should be decided based on the unique facts in that case, a case in which the prosecution and the defendant have an ongoing interest, as opposed to petitioner's now-finished case. The Court of Appeals' decision is no longer significant to anyone and has no substantial effect on the public.

.

Petitioner also argues that the Court of Appeals improperly considered information relating to charges for he was not convicted. He might well have a point if this case involved an appeal from a criminal conviction and he could show that the sentencing court relied on improper information, but this case involves an appeal from the denial of a writ of habeas corpus by the superior court, not the sentencing court. Petitioner elected to present to the superior court all the information it and the Court of Appeals relied on. He undoubtedly presented it hoping that it would support his argument, but he certainly is in no position to complain that it was used, instead, to reject his argument. Is petitioner seriously suggesting that the information he presents to a court can be used only in his favor? Petitioner chose both the remedy and the evidence in support of that remedy and has only himself to blame if these were poor choices.

6

Petitioner already has had this challenged probation condition reviewed by two courts and does present any compelling reason for review by a third court.

F. <u>CONCLUSION</u>

.

. .

Based on the foregoing argument, this court should deny review of the Court of Appeals decision.

Respectfully submitted this 4th day of November, 2013.

Richard Greene

Richard Greene Assistant City Attorney WSBA #13496